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Corporate Profile
2l i

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in
purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution
of pearls and jewellery products.

The Company was spun-off from Man Sang International Limited and

listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by
way of introduction on 17 October 2014 under the stock code of 1466.
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The Group is one of the world’s largest merchant, purchaser and
processor of pearls. The processing and production of pearls and
jewellery are conducted at the Group'’s production facilities in Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities so arising
in order to maximise shareholders’ value in the coming future.
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Financial Highlights
oA 5 4y

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

TR RBL
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MBLEE
Consolidated Income Statement HAWEE 2015 2014 Change
2015 2014 5 BE %
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (F#TT) 270,709 268,473 2,236 1%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EF(FHET) 108,028 93,646 14,382 15%
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) BREFS AR M (T8 7T) 16,049 32,024 (15,975) -50%
Profit for the year attributable to AN E R A AR R AL VA
equity holders of the Company (F#7T)
(HK$'000) 10,056 29,596 (19,540) -66%
Basic and diluted earnings BRERREERF (BI)
per share (HK cent) 3.78 11.11 (7.33) -66%
As at 31 March
MW3A31A
Consolidated Balance Sheet HABEERER 2015 2014 Change
20154 2014 F HE %
Net assets (HK$'000) AEFE(TEL) 267,598 398,861  (131,263) -33%
Cash and cash equivalent (HK$'000) ReRERKRE (FHET) 76,486 168,595 (92,109) -55%
Bank borrowing (HK$'000) IRITIEE (FHET) 45,200 47,600 (2,400) -5%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) IRERE R (FHET) 267,598 398,861 (131,263) -33%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
MBI R
2015 2014 Change
2015 2014 4F =X
Gross profit margin® ESEU 39.9% 34.9% 5 percentage points
SEED 2
Return on equity® BEEL @R 3.8% 74% -4 percentage points
AEBE DS
Current ratio (times)® MENELE (f5) 0 3.2 4.8
Gearing ratio® BREELEG 0.17 0.12

(1) Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the (1)  EFIEEREBEFBRIAA -

Group.

(20 Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity (20  IXE &% BIRIEA D T AR FE1E % TR AR A &)
holders of the Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the R SR PG MR 2w o
Company.

(3)  Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current @)  FEILXIEREEELMERIATE A EE5E -
liabilities.

(4)  Gearing ratio represents total borrowing, including current and non-current  (4) BAREBELRIEEELE(BERE RIEREEL
portion, divided by total equity. ) BRUA RS o
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Highlights of the Year 2014/2015

201420154 KHHHE

27 March 2014-3 April 2014
Participated in Baselworld 2014 — World Watch & Jewellery Show

30 May 2014-2 June 2014
Participated in JCK Show — Las Vegas, the United States

30 May 2014-3 June 2014
Participated in China Harbin International Expo

19-22 June 2014
Participated in June Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair

15-21 September 2014
Participated in September Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair

11-14 October 2014
Participated in Jewellery International Showcase

2014563827 BE 20144 A3H
2 HPERIKERE 2014

201445 A30RE2014F 6 A2R
S8 CKERBE N AT TR E R

20145 A30BE 201466 A3H
SEAEGEERRAREEABES

2014F6 A19BE22H
SENATERBEEHRES

2014F9R15BE21H
SENABTERBEEHRES

2014410 1MBRE14R
SRXEBAZRRKER

L /A 0

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show
HEREEEEHKER
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Highlights of the Year 2014/2015
201420154 KM=

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show
HENEEBRERKER

17 October 2014
Listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

27-30 November 2014
Participated in JMA Hong Kong 2014

21-24 January 2015
Participated in 26th International Jewellery Tokyo

2-8 March 2015
Participated in Hong Kong International Show 2015

19-26 March 2015
Participated in Baselworld 2015 — World Watch & Jewellery Show

20144510817 H
REBBERZAARARER
B LT

2014511 A27£30R
SEFEBRKRERARES 2014

201541 A21E24H
SHEAARRR 26 [EERIRE R

201543 A2%8H
S HEEFBEPRERE R 2015

20153 A 19&26H
2B P EBIKE 2015

07
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Chairman’s Statement

€8

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results
of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015
("FY15").

PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Company was spun-off from Man Sang International
Limited and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited by way of introduction on 17 October 2014.

The Group continued to focus on the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

The Group's revenue increased by HK$2.2 million or 1% from HK$268.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2014 ("FY14") to HK$270.7 million in
FY15, while the gross profit increased by HK$14.4 million or 15.4% from
HK$93.6 million in FY14 to HK$108.0 million in FY15.

AABHRREZTCSRREKRELEREGRAA
(TRRAN)REMBAR(GEBIAER])HE
2015F3A31B IEFE(2015FHBFE ) &

EHRI

RAFEE » AARKRRABBAERRA D HFILERN
2014F 1017 BUNBEANRBBHER S
BERARERLET -

AEBAEABETINHRE T Rt EERH
BOHDIRNIAEEMR ©

AEBERARBZE2014F3A31BIEFE((2014
FE B E |) 268,500,000 7T T &= 2015 5 Bf Bx
4 £ 270,700,000/% JT. * Ft 1@ £ 2,200,000 7 JT 3%
1% + = F| Bl B1 2014 F B B F [ 93,600,000 7% 7T
F+ 2= 2015 4 B BU4F € 108,000,000 7T FHiE 4
14,400,000 7 7T =% 15.4% °



The Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$10.1 million and basic earnings per share of 3.78 HK cents in FY15,
which was a significant decrease as compared to a profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$29.6 million and basic earnings per
share of 11.11 HK cents in FY14. Such decrease was mainly a result of
an one-off professional fees in relation to the spin-off and the increase
in the rental expenses of the Group's headquarters in Hong Kong.

PROSPECTS

We continue our focus on the established pearls and jewellery business.
We have actively participated in a number of leading trade shows over
the world and succeeded in diversifying our clientele. To reinforce
our ODM business, we have further strengthened our design and
engineering capability which will significantly improve efficiency in
technical planning and production processes.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their
long-term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would
also like to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group
for their dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2015

BRI e RARRERATRA A

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI o i B 3 B

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015 (“FY15”). During FY15, the consolidated profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$10.1 million (year ended
31 March 2014 (“FY14"): HK$29.6 million), representing a decrease of
66% as compared with that in FY14. Basic earnings per share was 3.78
HK cents (FY14: 11.11 HK cents), representing a decrease of 66% as
compared with that in FY14.

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 17 June 2014, the Group has completed a series of reorganisation
and the Company has become the holding company of the Group. On
17 October 2014 (the “Listing Date”), the shares of the Company were
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company was no longer
a subsidiary of Man Sang International Limited (“MSIL"). This major
milestone has set up a platform to enable the management team of the
Group to focus on the development of the pearls and jewellery business.

During the year, the global economy is challenging. Weakening Euro and
Japanese Yen has reduced the price competitiveness of our pearl and
jewellery products to customers in Europe and Japan. Notwithstanding
this, the decrease in revenue in our Europe and Japan market has been
recovered by the increase in revenue in Asia region (including Hong
Kong).

The Group has established a prestigious showroom (the “VIP
showroom”) in our headquarters in Hong Kong to showcase and to
demonstrate our fine jewellery to target high-end boutique retailers
and wealthy individuals in or visiting Hong Kong through connections
established via major trade shows and exhibitions and personal
connections of our sales and management team. Since setting up of
the VIP showroom, the Group has achieved revenue of HK$21.2 million
from this sales and marketing channel. The Group has a strategy to
build up a stronger market reputation associated with high quality, new
and fashionable products and performs internet sales through certain
E-commerce platforms.

With our continued effort on cost control measures, we managed to
improve our profit margin and maintain the competitiveness in the
market despite the continuous surge in the operating expenses in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") including but not limited to
wages and material costs. As part of the reorganisation in April 2014,
the operations of two of the factories have been transferred to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group in the PRC. Subsequent to the financial
year end, the Group is in the progress to transfer the operation of the
remaining one factory to that wholly-owned subsidiary.

B R P

REBEBERER B ([AAREZS (S
CRASHRARRREWB AR (HTE [ A%
B )& Z=201543 A318 1t & E (120154 B B
FE ) ZHEE - R2015FHBEEAN > KRR
W E(L#RA % F 410,100,000 7 7T (BE = 2014 £ 3
A31TALEFE([2014FEF B FE]) : 29,600,000
EIL) C 2014 F B EFEE T Bk 66% ° BRREAR
BF A3 78BN 0MAFMEFERE - 11.117%81)
2014 F I BEE T HK66% °

55 ol

R2014F6 178 AEBE =K —RIEHEF
WEARRRKABRNEBZIZRAF - R2014F
10R17B( EWHED » RARZRMHKIDE
EBEBERZHIBRAR ([BRFT]) ERET
WEARRTEERERBER AR (RERE]
VZF AR WEEZEREAAEEEEBHKE
YFE UETERERNKREER -

FA - RREEFTWIE - 5B WETT R H B
BAEE DR EKREERMBHREMNEAARR
FRERZEF D - #EAWIE - BN KR B RTS8
BB B MR (BIEEE) WIHSIE AR
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AR EE R T ER R ERHEEEER AL
ABEREZBERRDEERBNBEKE - BRL
BEEMRINENR  AEECEZHEEREHERE
RIS ERSMEE 21,200,0008 7T « NEEZ KR
EE - HERREZEREATSEE  LF
RETEFRHEFARBET 2N LEEETH
LIHE -

BEPEARANME(THE)) 2LEMAX (B
BARKIERRMERAR) TEAT - RS
BB D R IBR AR - R E R T
EREFTISHES N - R2014F4 ANERBIR
o AEERAEA IR 2 ECEREARSHE
—BRA2EHEMBLAR - RUBEFEER A%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently is principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue remained stable during the year (FY15: HK$270.7 million;,
FY14: HK$268.5 million). With the increasing marketing competition and
challenging macroeconomic conditions, especially in Europe and Japan,
the Group has recorded a decline in sales in Europe, North America
and Asian countries (excluding Hong Kong). Nevertheless, the revenue
of the Group remained stable because of the increase of revenue in
Hong Kong (FY15: HK$36.3 million; FY14: HK$9.7 million), thanks to the
establishment of the VIP showroom in April 2014 at our Hong Kong
headquarters which contributed a revenue of HK$21.2 million during the
year.

Gross profit increased by HK$14.4 million or 15% to HK$108.0 million
(FY14: 93.6 million). The increase was mainly due to an increase in gross
profit margin by 5 percentage points during FY15 (FY15: 39.9%, FY14:
34.9%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to
the improved production efficiency and the retail sales from the VIP
showroom during the year.

Selling and Administrative Expenses (the “S&A expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$11.1 million
(FY14: HK$15.6 million) and administrative expenses of HK$81.2 million
(FY14: HK$47.6 million). S&A expenses increased by HK$29.1 million or
46% to HK$92.3 million (FY14: HK$63.2 million) in FY15, as a result of the
one-off and non-recurring listing expenses and the increase in the rental
expenses of the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong during the year.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased by
HK$19.5 million or 66% to HK$10.1 million (FY14: HK$29.6 million) in
FY15.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's total equity was HK$267.6 million (2014
HK$398.9 million), representing a decrease of 33% from last year as a
result of the MSIL Distribution and Capitalisation Issue as defined in the
Listing Document of the Company dated 30 September 2014.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$76.5
million (2014: HK$168.6 million). Cash and bank balances were mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. The Group's working capital or net current assets were
HK$170.5 million (2014: HK$310.4 million). The current ratio, represented
by the current assets divided by the current liabilities, was 3.2 (2014: 4.8).

PN ki 5L 2}

445 ol

AEBBREERERE NI R £ZER
BEDHELIRNIKEER °

BA B BH
AEREBRALFTFRQISFHBFE:
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R2015F 3 A31H - REBLRER A 267,600,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PN ik iy L 2}

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s total borrowing, which was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, was HK$45.2 million (2014: HK$47.6
million) and is interest-bearing. The Group does not currently use any
derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had available banking facilities of
HK$125.2 million (2014: HK$47.6 million) with a bank, of which the
unused banking facilities amounted to HK$80.0 million (2014: Nil). With
the committed unused banking facilities in place and available cash and
cash equivalents, the Group has adequate financial resources to meet
the anticipated future liquidity requirements and capital expenditure
commitment.

The Group’s borrowing and banking facilities were secured by certain
leasehold land and building with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$95.0 million (2014: HK$91.0 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations
from various currencies, such as United States dollars and Chinese
Renminbi, which were the major foreign currencies transacted by the
Group during FY14 and FY15.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group
has subsidiaries operating in Mainland China, in which most of their
transactions, including revenue, expenses and other financing activities,
are denominated in Chinese Renminbi.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may
use hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to
manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total workforce of 521 (2014:
539), of whom 53 (2014: 49) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff
cost, including directors” emoluments and mandatory provident fund,
was approximately HK$61.6 million (2014: HK$65.0 million). Employees
were remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end discretionary
bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions and
individual performance.

201543831 B + AEEETHEZ 8 1
E#8%8 /545,200,000 7T (2014 4F : 47,600,000 7%
5T o AR E E AR A 8 R HT 4 T A=A
KA -

R2015F3A31H » AEEERTIRHEZBRE
& %8 %125,200,0007% 7T (2014 4F : 47,600,000
Br) ERFNARBBZRTEERER
80,000,000/ 7T (20145 « &) - ;T REAHERFA
RIOTEEREANBRRERFRAAS - AKHE
BRREZVBERENRRERZRBESTRK
KB AR S G

AEBZEBERRITEERENETHEMER
REMEERIEIR - B EREE R 95,000,000% 7T
(20144 : 91,000,000 7T) °
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65,000,000 7T) - BB ZHM AR EZ KRB R
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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CHAIRMAN

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 54, is a non-executive director
and the chairman of the Company. He provides leadership to the
company, and, with the support from other members of the Board, is
responsible for the formulation and development of corporate policies
and business strategies of the Group. He was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 1997"" by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and the "Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the
Year Award 1997" by San Francisco State University and the “Chinese
Outstanding Entrepreneur Award 2008"" by the China Enterprise
Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors Association. He is
currently a standing member of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and a member of the Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, vice chairman of the China Chamber
of International Commerce, honorary life president of the Hong Kong
Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited, foundation honorary
chairman of the Gem and Jewellery Committee of China General
Chamber of Commerce and honorary chairman of the Zhejiang Pearl
Trade Association. He has over 30 years of experience in the pearls and
jewellery business.

Mr. Cheng is currently a co-chairman and executive director of China
South City Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1668)). Mr. Cheng ceased to be a non-executive Chairman
of Man Sang International Limited (“MSIL") (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 938)) on 16 October 2014. Mr. Cheng was
also a director of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company listed
on NYSE MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) from September 1995 to December
2013. Mr. Cheng is a brother-in-law of Mr. Chen zhi Wei.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YAN Sau Man, Amy, aged 52, is an executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Company. She, together with other
members of the Board, is responsible for the overall management of
the Group as well as the formulation, development and implementation
of the Group’s corporate policies, business strategies and overall sales
and marketing strategies. She has involved in implementing the sales
and marketing strategies of the Group. Ms. Yan has over 25 years of
experience in the selling and marketing of pearls and she also has
extensive experience in the jewellery business. Ms. Yan is currently
the Honorary President of Hong Kong Pearl Association and Shenzhen
Pearl Industry Association and the Director General of Tahitian Pearl
Association Hong Kong. Ms. Yan ceased to be an executive director of
MSIL on 16 October 2014.
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Mr. CHEN zhi Wei, aged 52, is an executive director and he is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s procurement and assisting the
Group's sales team on the pricing of the Group’s pearls. He joined the
Group in January 1998 as a procurement manager and has since then
developed his experience in pearl procurement related to the pearls and
jewellery business. He has developed close working relationships with
many pearl suppliers which enable the Group to build up a strong and
reliable supply network. He has over 16 years of experience in the pearl
business. He is a brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Yat Sang, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 26 September 2014. He has over 30 years
of financial management experience and held senior management
positions in various multinational corporations in Hong Kong, Australia,
Thailand and China. Mr. Fung obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976. Mr. Fung is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in United
Kingdom and a member of the CPA Australia. Mr. Fung ceased to be an
independent non-executive director of MSIL on 16 October 2014.

Mr. LOOK Andrew, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 26 September 2014. Mr. Look has over 20 years
of experience in equity investment analysis of Hong Kong and China
stock markets. He served as managing director and head of Hong Kong
research, strategy and product at UBS AG from June 2000 to August
2008. He was an investment manager at Prudential Portfolio Managers
(Asia) Limited from late 1994 to early 2000. He was responsible for
corporate finance from August 1990 to late 1994 as an investment
manager at Lai Sun Development Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 488). He was an investment officer
at Hang Seng Bank Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 11), from August 1986 to June 1990. Mr. Look founded
Look’s Asset Management Limited, a Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong licensed corporation based in Hong Kong, in September
2009, and currently serves as its chief investment officer and managing
director. He obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of
Toronto in June 1986.

Mr. Look is currently an independent non-executive director of Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1446), Ka Shui International Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 822), and TCL
Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2618).
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Mr. TSUI Francis King Chung, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 26 September 2014. He has
extensive experience in financial advisory services, investor relations,
corporate restructuring, direct investment and business development
consultancy. His experience with listed entities include serving as
director to Man Sang Holdings Inc., a company whose shares were
listed on the American Stock Exchange, from 2006 to 2009, and China
Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company listed on the NYSE MKT (ticker
symbol: CNR), since 2009. China Metro- Rural Holdings Limited was
the successor of Man Sang Holdings Inc. pursuant to a reorganisation
in 2009. He also served on the audit committee of Man Sang Holdings
Inc. and China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited. Since 2000, Mr. Tsui has
founded and served as the President and director of DMC Investment
Co. Ltd., a private investment company in Hong Kong active in direct
investment. From 2007 to 2011, he was the President of Asian Outreach
International. Currently, he serves as the Chairman of the Board of
AsiaCMS Berhad headquartered at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. Mr. Tsui
received his Bachelor of Arts and M. Phil. from the University of Hong
Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TSE Chi Keung, aged 34, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Accounting degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. Mr. Tse worked in
Ernst & Young in Hong Kong before joining the Group in July 2014. He
is responsible for the financial and accounting management, corporate
governance affairs and merger and acquisition activities of the Group.
Mr. Tse is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has more than 10 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and management.

Ms. MA Wai Han, aged 49, is a senior sales manager of the Group.
Ms. Ma assists in the formulation of sales and marketing strategies of
the Group's pearl products and is responsible for the implementation
of those strategies. She joined the Group in November 1996 and got
promoted as a senior sales manager in April 2004. Ms. Ma has over 19
years of experience in the selling and marketing of pearls.

Ms. CHEUNG Lai Fong, aged 31, is a senior sales manager of the
Group. Ms. Cheung assists in the formulation of sales and marketing
strategies of the Group's jewellery products and is responsible for the
implementation of those strategies. She joined the Group in September
2007 and got promoted as a senior sales manager in April 2014. She
obtained her Bachelor of Social Science degree from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2007. Ms. Cheung has over 8 years of experience in
the selling and marketing of jewellery.

Mr. CHEN Mu Sheng, aged 47, is the deputy general manager of a
wholly own PRC subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
1994. He has more than 20 years of experience in managing production
facilities in the PRC. He is responsible for the overall management of
the PRC production facilities, in particular the formulation and continual
improvement of the related jewellery production process and resource
planning. Working closely with the CEO, he is also responsible for the
implementation of policies set by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent
with the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best interest
of all of its stakeholders, and the board of directors (the ‘Board”) is
fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high standards of
corporate governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the
Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high
standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”), the
Company has complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG
Code between 17 October 2014 (the “Listing Date”) and 31 March 2015
and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015. To ensure Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in
accordance with the Model Code and securities code of the Company, a
Director is required to notify the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman
prior to any dealings in the Securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk
management and performances. The management team is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include (1) the
preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the
Board's approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company'’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives
of the Group and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each
Director with various professional qualification, experience and related
financial management expertise have contributed to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard to the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfy the
balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate governance
requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing development and
management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely Ms. Yan
Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Chen zhi Wei, one Non-Executive Director, Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company’s interim and annual results. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015, two Board meetings were held
and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out in
the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

BRI e RARRERATRA A

Corporate Governance Report

cie AERE 8

WA

EXgREfMEEEREEE  BRAERERN
RAAREEARE X - REORTE - WEPER
Z-EREENKRR - EEEGHAEERTE
BREFSZRENMBE BEFSTHRGH
FRRZBEENTE EFSRHIZREEER
BrIBRERR BRNGHRTHNFERS
HEAEAHESTSRTIEAEL  QHITREZ
MEREEIZ I E K R\ b IR R - & (3) T HRRDE
EREERTE RUKRY -EFZSTREET
BRARARBBEANSBEEE TR - LHER
BAERELEFEIML ERARRREEER
&

EFEe HAAREEBFERBRETERL
HE ARz R RER RER LR T -
EEFHABTRAERER  KR&BBMBE
BEXNE  RERXERARFWEHER - WEE
A% - WREREE MR Z &S - it
ExgfE RAEFEZARNEAREESR
EAH - RERERTEAFTFEZERER
Ko ARFFEFEERNERER -

EXeBRh _RRTEFRAZT NMAKRSER
T —RIFRTEFPREELE (EF)UKR=
BEUFPTERTHRELRE ERAEEREDY
H S A AERK -

BEREFBENAFREISEVVEIEER
SREEABREIA -

EXeEHRTEE  UTHERRBERAAR
ZEBERPBERR - YRR ERNA B P HE
BREREERE - B EMABE2015F3A31 B
BA EFERITMAEHR  BRESHFES
EERZBEN BN AHRE [EFERZEET

B~ -

19



20

MAN SANG JEWELLERY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015
MAN Sa J H I e A R 201

Corporate Governance Report

e S8 Eia

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and
Senior Management set out on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and the chief executive officer
(the “CEQ") is Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy. The roles of the Chairman and
the CEO of the Group are clearly defined and segregated to ensure
independence and proper checks and balances. The Chairman
focuses on the business strategy and direction of the Company and
has executive responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and
ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of
its responsibilities. The CEOQ is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors, including Non-Executive Directors, appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Moreover, all Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a term of three
years expiring on the earlier of either (i) the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company in the year of the third anniversary of
the appointment or re-election of that Director, or (i) the expiration of
the period within which the annual general meeting of the Company
is required to be held in the year of the third anniversary of the
appointment or re-election of that Director and in any event, subject to
earlier determination in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company and/or any applicable laws and regulations.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is
not aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. The Company has organised a seminar in
October 2014 on updated laws and regulations. The Company has also
provided reading materials to all Directors to develop and refresh their
professional knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in October
2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will also take
into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Ccommittee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been
met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to
commit Company funds in order to obtain advice from outside legal
counsel, accountants, investigatory services or other expert advice.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung. Mr. Fung Yat Sang is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015, the Audit
committee held one meeting to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2014 before their submission to the Board
and monitored the integrity of such financial statements. The attendance
of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing, and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Yan Sau
Man, Amy. Mr. Look Andrew is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to approve the
remuneration packages and performance bonuses for the Directors and
senior management of the Company. The attendance of each member
of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the section headed “Board
and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2015 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for, amongst other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing, and one Executive Director, namely Ms. Yan Sau Man,
Amy. Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and concluded that members of the Board has possessed
the expertise and independence to carry out the Board's functions and
responsibilities.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015 are set out below:

R RETRTETR

B FTHBZE2015F3A3M B  KR2FH
REEE ERZESAFHZESSH MR
HEREEEHT AT

Audit Remuneration

Board committee Ccommittee
Name of Director BEENR EES ERZER FHZzEE
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing BN B 5 A 2/2 - 11
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy BFEE/)ME 2/2 - 171
Mr. Chen zhi Wei PRAEE ST AE 2/2 = =
Mr. Fung Yat Sang KSR ST 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Look Andrew BEER oA 2/2 11 11
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung EYR e 2/2 11 11
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT 9273

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and
of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:
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B EH

Services rendered FHR AR Fee paid/payable
e ENER

HK$'000

FET

Audit of financial statements B|IX B IRE 1,000
Review of interim results ERPEREEAE 180
Other non-audit services E M IERZARTS 3,262
4,442

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls which covers financial reporting,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company, as well
as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such internal controls.
The Board has delegated such responsibility to the management of the
Company. The management, under the supervision of the Board, has
established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls that are significant
to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit Committee also considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, as well as their
training programmes and budgets.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external adviser to review
its internal control procedures and make recommendations to the Board
any improvements that can be made to the existing internal control
procedures. The review covers the effectiveness of material controls on
financial and operational control as well as risk management functions
across the Group. The internal control and accounting system of the
Group have been in place and functioning effectively for the year under
review.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Chi Keung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since December 2014. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Tse reports to the Chairman of
the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Tse has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Law Cap. 22
(Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law"), registered shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to
convene a SGM at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered
Office”), which is presently situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0.Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The SGM
Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of the SGM and
such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the
contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the
SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a SGM will not
be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided
that any SGM so convened is held within two (2) months from the date
of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the
SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Company’s bye-laws or the Companies
Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set
out in the preceeding paragraph. Shareholders can also send enquiries
and proposals putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at
shareholders’ meetings to the Board in writing to the Hong Kong office
of the Company whose contact details are as follows or directly by
raising questions at the general meeting of the Company.

Suites 220814, 22nd Floor
Sun Life Tower, The Gateway
15 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company's share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its
customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, there are no changes in the
Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website.

By Order of the Board
CHENG Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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Report of the Directors
HE W

The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 39 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

The register of members of the Company (the “Shareholders”) will be
closed from Wednesday, 26 August 2015 to Friday, 28 August 2015 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 28 August 2015 (the “2015 AGM"),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2015 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25 August 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, as at
31 March 2015 amounted to HK$262,564,000 (2014: Not applicable),
which represented the retained earnings/accumulated losses and share
premium.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

BORROWING

Borrowing repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowing are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A four-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 96.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
Mr. Chen Zhi Wei

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fung Yat Sang
Mr. Look Andrew
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung

In accordance with article 84 of the Company's bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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AR,

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Each of the executive directors has respectively entered into a service
contract commencing from 1 October 2014 with the Company for a term
of three years. The service contract may be terminated in accordance
with the respective terms of the service contract.

Pursuant to the service contract, the term of appointment of Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing as a non-executive director is three years commencing from
1 October 2014.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed pursuant to
the respective letters of appointment for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 October 2014.

None of the directors of the Company has entered or has proposed to
enter into any service contract with the Company or any member of
the Group other than contracts expiring or terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 15 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been
entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's businesses.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 17 October 2014. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Options”) shall not in
aggregate exceed 26,632,116 shares, being 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the date the shares of the Company commence
trading on the Stock Exchange. The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company (and to which the provisions of chapter 17
of the Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No option may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted to each eligible participants (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Options) under the Share Option
Scheme in any 12 month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
an option to the eligible participants to subscribe for the shares of the
Company at an exercise price and subject to the other terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to certain restrictions contained in the Share Option Scheme, an option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the applicable
option period, which is not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of option. There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which must
be achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
Share Option Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the
Board may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to such
conditions, restrictions or limitations including (without limitation) those
in relation to the minimum period of the options to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved as the Board may determine in its
absolute discretion.

The Board confirms that the Share Option Scheme is in compliance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No option had ever been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were set out below:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

WA Z o A

R2015F 3 A31 B » EFRAR ]S E L AHEH
EE(REAS MR ((ESRRAE G E
XV BB T HRE) 2 Bty - BB B 5
B@RERSLAEEIIEXVEBET RESHED
ZHRERBARRBRBZA(BRERRIEESK
HEGRMBREMRE TEFRAIERA S OX
B) S0 IREE 5 M E R0 5 352 1R A A
ZIGBIFTIER B RM K ORBE LR+
ZEHRRERETEFRZNRETR ([1RE
STRID B E AR R R R B A P 2 i s FOX B # D
LUNN

(a) AARXAFBBZ T

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each held

FEEEREAE00BIZEBEREE
Percentage of
the issued
Direct Deemed Total share capital
Name of director Capacity interest interest interest of the Company
EARAR
ERITRA
EEnE 54 HiERER BREREER s BAt
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Beneficial owner and interest 68,354,690 93,756,331 162,111,021 60.87%
of a controlled corporation (Note)
BIRE L4 EnlE ARREEEER (Pig3E)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy Beneficial owner 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 1.35%
BAEZ/ME EREBA
Note: N

These 93,756,331 shares of the Company were directly owned by Rich
Men Limited, where Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the issued share
capital of Rich Men Limited.

Rich Men Limited & # # & 93,756,331 & 2 2 7]
%5+ EPAA B S A #E A Rich Men Limited 9 2
B1TRRAN100% ©



(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2015, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Same as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
a short position in any share or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EFAEEH e RAEREBRRARAT 33

Report of the Directors

AR

(b) A2 R By 2 35 5

B EXXIEEEIN - R2015FE3 /8318 ©
FEAMEERNAR R S ET MG LR
(RBHERREIEOIEXVBEFREE) 2
B - HERDKNESFHEE QREZES
NMEERBIEXVEBETRESHE 2R TE
AMEGARNR RS AT (BIERIRE S &
i%fwﬁllﬁF‘%%ﬁmTi%%&ﬁ%hﬁz%‘

KA ¢ Bk (0) RIEFE FH KR HIE 1545 55 352
1'*’En57\321‘x1ﬁw}5ﬁ?aE’]yﬁuﬂﬁﬂ % (C mf
ZRTRAIEMNE AR A FT 2 R Bk

BRARE Efbih T WESN - BEARFE
ERTBITRABRARAHEE(TEE
BorE (ERRBHLHEGERPIFEXVED) B
ER AR EEED - EEE
AR D BRIEE 7 R HIH 155 55 352 1%
BEFENZCMADREFEETASITH
GARRA R RTORRE

o 0 B B A 2 Z A

FAMETMNESHERBRFY TLERTA
HBBEARRBRODHEFME s 2R - RITHE
ZEREN  TAR RS E A E A R IR 3L
ERL SRS ERARGERAEMEABRZZ
SR -



34

MAN SANG JEWELLERY HoLDINGS LimiTED © ANNUAL ReEPORT 2015

Report of the Directors

AR,

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, so far as the directors are aware, the following
persons (other than the directors or chief executive of the Company),
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or
short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company,
which are required to be disclosed under provisions of Divisions 2 and

FRBORZ i 2l

M2015F3A3TMH - BESMAA - U TALT(KR
RRIEBHEBTHABRIN RARRBRMD K
TR R B sk R B A 5% 3k A LB IR IR FE
EREEEFIEXVIFE 2RI EIEX F AR E
MET)}E ﬁ&ﬁﬁi"iﬂﬂ?ﬂ%%é{ BEC A Z KTl

3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant to Section  ZEZEFHRR G AR T ¢
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, were as
follows:
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares the issued
of HK$0.01 Long/short share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity each held position the Company
g REE QT
00182 EERITRAE
BRRERB 54 ZBERHE 87y} Aotk
Rich Men Limited Beneficial Owner 93,756,331 Long position 35.20%
EnlEEA e
Ms. Ong Ying Lai (Note) Interest of spouse 162,111,021 Long position 60.87%
RUBL T () Ao B s HE
Note: Mi5E

Ms. Ong Ying Lai is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and is therefore deemed
interested in all the shares of the Company held/owned by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
(by himself or through Rich Men Limited) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, immediately following the listing of the
Company, the Company has not been notified of any person (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) or entity had an interests
or a short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed
compliance with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2015.

REBR T AENELENRE - BOEREE S SAE
?ﬁi%ﬁ/ﬂ&ﬁﬁ’]% HARBRMDER (BIEFES LB
EIEFIEBEA S i@ ARICh Men Limited A ) -
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the auditor, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March
2015 contributed by the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 15%
—  five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales

—  the largest customer 11%
—  five largest customers combined 44%

None of Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save for information disclosed elsewhere in this report, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report under the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing Date
to 31 March 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAN SANG JEWELLERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 95, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32), and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement
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Year ended 31 March
BE3AMMBLEE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihE=s F#&xT FHT
Revenue A 7 270,709 268,473
Cost of sales SHE A 10 (162,681) (174,827)
Gross profit EF 108,028 93,646
Other gains — net HAplg A — F58 9 813 1,170
Selling expenses HERX 10 (11,095) (15,627)
Administrative expenses TTHHAX 10 (81,214) (47,580)
Operating profit EiE 16,532 31,609
Finance income g 27 517 584
Finance costs ZUR DN 27 (1,000) (169)
Finance (costs)/income — net B (AAN) /Was — B %8 (483) 415
Profit before income tax FRAT{SBL AR R 16,049 32,024
Income tax expense FrSFiA X 13 (5,993) (2,428)
Profit for the year attributable to  7~2 7R RAE(LEEHF
equity holders of the Company 10,056 29,596
Earnings per share attributable to ZATKRFEEESRER
equity holders of the Company 15
Basic and Diluted EARFEHE HK3.78 cents &l  HK11.11 cents /&1Ll
Dividends % E 16 - >

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements in the annual report.
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Year ended 31 March
BE3AMMBLEE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT Tt
Profit for the year INEE A 10,056 29,596
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2 mEikzs
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJgEE# HIE F 167 7 A
Exchange difference on translation MERINETB 2 EH =5
of foreign operations - (170)
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified Hg T @B H 2182 EH
to profit or loss
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HELTHREFAAELE -
building, net of deferred income tax MR T FT{S R F 58 5,574 4,869
Other comprehensive income for the year, REZEMEEE @ BRTUFEE
net of tax 5,574 4,699
Total comprehensive income for the year REFEFARR B R EL
attributable to equity holders of the Company & E Y548 58 15,630 34,295

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated 55483 Z= 958 7 ik AR ERLZ A MR E
financial statements in the annual report. ZEBEHS o
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As at 31 March

M3HA31H

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ RE MRS 17 101,881 97,004
Prepayments TEfFIE 21 6,810 =
Deferred income tax assets EIEFFSTHEE 19 742 2,929
109,433 99,933

Current assets REEE
Inventories =8 20 99,837 78,282
Amounts due from related companies FEUL B8 E N R FIB - 70,841
Trade and other receivables JRE L 5 R B L A R UK BR R 21 72,738 74,469
Cash and cash equivalents ReERERRE 22 76,486 168,595
249,061 392,187
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables JE A< & 3R B EL A R AT BR K 23 29,386 32,853
Bank borrowing RITIEE 24 45,200 47,600
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFRSFi B 1E 4,015 1,376
78,601 81,829
Net current assets TEE A 170,460 310,358
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERRBEE 279,893 410,291

Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFSHAaE 19 12,295 11,430
Net assets EEZFE 267,598 398,861
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BaREARR
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2015 2014

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt aE FET FH&T
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to equity holders 7~ TR RE/G#EZS

of the Company

Share capital RN 25 2,663 -
Reserves E 264,935 398,861
Total equity RS 267,598 398,861

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated F48ZE 5B ZMiE AR TR A M B HREZE
financial statements in the annual report. BEES -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 95 were approved 39 E 95 B ATH 4R & BT 75 K B R 2015F 6 A
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2015 and 24 BE= e fEMIRETIZ - THTHEER

were signed on its behalf by: KERE:
Cheng Chung Hing Yan Sau Man, Amy
BN BEF
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Executive Director

EERIFBTTEE HITEF
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Balance Sheet
HrfifER

As at 31 March

MW3H31H
2015
Note HK$'000
{h=a F& T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR ZI&E 18 11,210
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments SEUNE S 330
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A B FRIE 18 274,429
274,759
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H {th fE AR FX 2,530
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B A TR IE 18 18,212
20,742
Netcurrentassets ~~~~~~ &@®¥E®€ 254,017
Total assets less current liabilites  ®#%gE@mm&é® -~~~ 265,227
Net assets EEFE 265,227
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders 772 BREEGER
of the Company
Share capital R AN 25 2,663
Reserves B 26 262,564
Total equity RS 265,227

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated $48F 95 B 2 H:T AR ERGE S M B HRE 2
financial statements in the annual report. BEEE D o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 95 were approved 39 F 95 B Fr & 42 & M 1§ & = R 201546
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2015 and  A24 HEE S it/ R IRETIZ - W H T

were signed on its behalf by: BEERKES
Cheng Chung Hing Yan Sau Man, Amy
BB AL B BEE
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Executive Director

EERIFBTEE HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 March
BE3A3MHILEEE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&T FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEREECHRERE
Profit before income tax B P15 750 A A 16,049 32,024
Adjustments for: P SIBEL 2 AR
Interest income FEWA (517) (584)
Interest expenses FEFZ 1,000 169
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - HE MREITE 5,998 5,657
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE - BE K& B
plant and equipment &8, (W) 198 (80)
Operating cash flows before working EBEESBHI2RERERE
capital changes 22,728 37,186
Change in working capital: EEESED
Inventories FE (21,555) (1,511)
Trade and other receivables, B 52 T L L B
deposits and prepayments e RIERKIE (5,079) (5,390)
Trade and other payables FEAST B SR I E At FE AP BR 5K (3,467) (978)
Amounts due from related companies UL RSN\ 2 A (3,142) (5,719)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& (FEH) EE2RE (10,515) 23,588
Interest paid BEFIE (1,000) (169)
Income taxes paid B FTEH (962) (899)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REER(ER) EEZ
operating activities REFHE (12,477) 22,520
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZBEESHRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  KEL&E (5,003) (3,021)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - HERZEMSIE
plant and equipment 21 352
Interest received EHFIE 517 584
Amounts due from related companies JE W 52 TKIE (72,767) (93,344)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEEAZREFH (77,232) (95,429)
cash flows from financing activities BETHEECRERE
Proceeds from borrowing BEEFSKIEA - 48,000
Repayments of borrowing BEEE (2,400) (400)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETEE (ER) EE
__financing activities ReF® (24000 17,6008
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B2 RZRRERFDBE (92,109) (25,309)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzRe MERBE®
of the year 168,595 194,110
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes PEREH) & - (206)
cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEERERRE
of the year 76,486 168,595

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements in the annual report.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

NG EY
Property Retained
Share Share Other revaluation  Translation ~ eamings
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total
nE RERH
kx  ROEE  HthEE  SfEE  EiGE (e @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THL THT THL THL THL
Balances at 1 April 2013 R2013F 4B 1R 2 &8 = 10 49,099 = 315,457 364,566
Profit for the year REEET = - - - 29,59 29,59
Other comprehensive income: EEmEks
Exchange difference on translation BERNRBERZE
of foreign operations = = = (170) = (170)
Increase in fair value of leasehold BETHREFANES
land and building, net of deferred B RETAERTE
income tax = = 4,369 = = 4,369
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFR2EMRAR - - 4,869 (1700 2959 3429
Release of property revaluation reserve. BETHIRIETHEE
upon depreciation of leasehold land EEMESHEE
and building = = (1,129 = 1,129 -
Total transactions with owners BEFNETIRHEE = = (1,129) = 1,129 =
Balances at 31 March 2014 R201453 831 B 2ES = 10 52,839 (170) 346,182 398,861
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

oty B LIRS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ERARRELR
Retained
earnings/
Property (Accumulated
Share Share Other  revaluation  Translation losses)
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total
RERR/
(RitER)
i RHEE AtiifE  NEERRE Ejifif (Wta) &t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tén Thn TR Tén Thr TEn Tén
Balances at 1 April 2014 R0UEIR1RZES - - 10 52,839 (170 346,182 398,861
Profitfor the year TER T - - - - - 10,056 10,056
Other comprehensive income: Eramks
Increase in fair value of leasehold RETHRETLA A
land and buiding net of deferred i REEAETTE
income tax - - - 5574 - - 5574
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERENREE - - - 5,574 - 10,056 15,630
Deemed Distribution and Capitalisation Issue (noteh) e TRREA( B (D) 2,663 280,483 (10) - - (430,029) (146,893)
Release of property revaluation reserve RELHRETHERER
upon depreciation of leasefold MEEREE
land and building - - - (1,298) - 1,298 -
Total transactions with owners BFENETIR5ER 2,663 280,483 (10) (1,298) - (428,731 (146,893)

Balances at 31 March 2015 R201553 731 B2k 2,663 280,483 - 51,115 (170) (72,493) 267,598
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The Group's retained earnings/(accumulated losses) included an amount of
HK$48,000 (2014: Nil) reserved by the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC
laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide
for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in
their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions
to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.
PRC company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, and before distribution of its post-tax profits
of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when
the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production
operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a
company may make further discretional contribution to the surplus reserve
using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of
directors.

On 10 October 2014, 266,321,063 shares were issued to Man Sang
International Limited (“MSIL") by way of capitalising the amounts due from
the Group to MSIL of approximately HK$283.1 million (the “Capitalisation
Issue”). The Capitalisation Issue was made for the purpose of effecting the
MSIL Distribution (see below) to MSIL.

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Company’s share on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Consequently the condition for the special interim
dividend declared by MSIL on 26 September 2014 for the purpose of
the Reorganisation was satisfied by the Capitalisation Issue (the “MSIL
Distribution”) and the MSIL Distribution has accordingly been completed.

Deemed distribution represents the total consideration of approximately
HK$430 million payable by the Group to MSIL for the transfer of the
related assets and liabilities of the pearls and jewellery business under the
Reorganisation.

The notes on pages 48 to 95 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements in the annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 5 Y 5 W 0 B ek

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

(a)

(b)

General information

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the purchasing, processing, designing, production and
wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
May 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17
October 2014.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion
of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) as described
below, the pearls and jewellery business (the “Business”)
was principally conducted through Arcadia Jewellery Limited
(“Arcadia HK"), Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited (“Man
Sang HK") and Man Hing Industry Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. ("MH SZz"), which are indirectly wholly owned
subsidiaries of Man Sang International Limited (“MSIL").

In preparation for listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent the Reorganisation to
transfer the Business to the Company principally through the
following steps:

(i) On 30 April 2014, MSIL transferred the entire issued
share capital of Man Sang Innovations Limited to
Arcadia Global Holdings Limited (“Arcadia BVI").

(i) On 30 April 2014, Man Sang HK transferred the
entire issued share capital of Arcadia HK to Arcadia
Investment Holdings Limited.

(i) On 30 April 2014, Man Sang HK entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Man Sang HK assigned
the relevant assets and liabilities of the Business to
Man Sang Jewellery (Hong Kong) Limited (“MS Jewellery
HK").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reorganisation (Continued)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(Xii)

On 30 April 2014, MH SZ entered into an agreement
pursuant to which MH SZ assigned the relevant assets
and liabilities of the Business to Hui Bao Feng Jewellery
(Shenzhen) Limited (“"HBF Jewellery”).

On 30 April 2014, Man Sang Development Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of MSIL, transferred
the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Man
Sang Investments Limited to Man Sang International
Holdings Limited (“MS Holdings").

On 13 May 2014, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. A share was allotted and issued
at par and subsequently transferred to MSIL, and the
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of MSIL.

On 29 May 2014, MH SZ transferred the entire equity
interest in Kasiao (Shenzhen) Jewellery Company
Limited to HBF Jewellery.

On 17 June 2014, the Company subscribed the 1,500
issued share capital of MS Holdings and 1,000 issued
share capital of Arcadia BVI.

On 17 June 2014, MS Holdings and Arcadia BVI
repurchased the one share each issued to MSIL.

On 10 October 2014, 266,321,063 shares were issued
to MSIL by way of capitalising the amounts due from
the Group to MSIL of approximately HK$283.1 million.
The Capitalisation Issue was made for the purpose of
effecting the MSIL Distribution to MSIL.

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Company's
share on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Consequently the condition for the special interim
dividend declared by MSIL on 26 September 2014 for
the purpose of the Reorganisation was satisfied by
the Capitalisation Issue and the MSIL Distribution has
accordingly been completed.

On 17 October 2014, the shares of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”). Following the Listing, the Company is no
longer a subsidiary of MSIL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of leasehold land
and building, which are carried at fair values.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), "Accounts and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial
year and the comparative period.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation as described in note 1(b),
the Company became the holding company of the Group.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and for the year ended 31 March
2014 had been prepared as if the Group had always been
in existence throughout the period presented, or since the
respective dates of incorporation or establishment of the
Group companies.

Immediately prior to the Reorganisation, the pearls and
jewellery business was held by MSIL and operated mainly
through three wholly owned subsidiaries of MSIL and
pursuant to the Reorganisation, the pearls and jewellery
business was transferred to and held by the Company in
June 2014.

Accordingly, the combined financial information of the
companies as at 31 March 2014 and for the year ended 31
March 2014 now comprising the Group was presented using
the carrying values of the pearls and jewellery business
under the Company.

The comparative balance sheet of the Group included assets
and liabilities that are directly related and clearly identified to
the pearls and jewellery business. The comparative income
statement of the Group include all revenues, related costs,
expenses and charges directly generated and incurred by
the pearls and jewellery business. Certain administrative
expenses and employee benefit expenses for which specific
identification method was not practicable were allocated to
the pearls and jewellery business according to certain ratios
determined by the Board.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

(d)

Foreign currency translation

0}

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@ assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land and
building are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluation are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair valued at the consolidated balance
sheet date. Any revaluation increase is credit to the property
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credit to the consolidated income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in the net
carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt
with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained earnings.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

®

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful
lives from the date on which they are available for use and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease
or 50 years

25% — 33%

20% — 25%

25%

25%

Leasehold land and building

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gains — net” in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or assets not ready
to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment l0ss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets

)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
category: loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

(h) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

2

Kl R BEZE (1)

(g WHeeE (8

(iii) {E ()

BEZEAERENRBRE
AL —HBEBABAZRY
B ERREHEENE
HARENH - ERAATERE
WESCETEMPEER - M
KA BRSIRR R AR R KR
EREHRAGERD - Flm0
3R 36 R 35 B2 280 HR & SR AR R 2
BT EE -
T FE B R e B KRR SRR B T
5 ERERNIREEREE
IR EERERN KRR
ZEFRERAERE(TRE
HMAREEZRREERER)R
EfZEZHTE8 - ZEEFRA
BETAHE  MEBEESET
RER B W R AR o i &K
HFEEEI R ERTEFE
AR B EEREREZ
BRED/BEBEANEELREA
ERME - #EREMAG - K
SETRERTIARARERE
EEAAEEMEFERE -

R E R HIRE - REBEERE
R TR R AT S B R
BRBEEZ-HENHEBHE
BMEBAZEEFRER
HE) - AR EEECHRRE
BRIRGA WEmR AR -

(h) IS TR

WE A ERITRANEHAERSE L
BERFEALBEELRBEHFRE
ERXNEE  RIAREEEKHY
BaE TREERERZRERF
B - A REAMTRAMITEERREMF
HE - AUARR—REKBIET R
RARBHEFHHRRER - BOE
R AR R BT -



2

"%

TSR — RAERTERARA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

@

G)

(k)

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Provisions

(n)

(o)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition

(q)

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

(x)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefits
scheme being operated by the local PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% to 15% of the
average basic salary to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds managed by the
PRC government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based
on minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to
a cap of HK$1,500 per month, effective from 1 June 2014
(2014: HK$1,250). The assets of this pension scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Operating leases

Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentive received from the lessor), including
upfront payment made for land use right, are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of these leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
Statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length
terms, and the value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company's liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on
experience of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management'’s judgement. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life
of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income statement
within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

@)

Amendments to existing standards and new interpretations
effective for annual periods beginning 1 April 2014, relevant
to the Group's operations and adopted by the Group:

Amendment to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendment to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
Amendment to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount
disclosures for
non-financial assets
Amendment to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and

continuation of
hedge accounting

HK(RIC) - Int 21 Levies

The adoption of the above amendments to existing standards
and new interpretations did not have any material impact on
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

New standards and amendments to existing standards which
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2014 and have not been early adopted:

Effective

for annual

periods

beginning on

or after

Amendment to Defined benefit plans 1 July 2014

HKAS 19

Amendment to Annual improvements to 1 July 2014
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Amendment to Annual improvements to 1 July 2014
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Amendment to Annual improvements to 1 January 2016
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2017

customers
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3  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(o)

New standards and amendments to existing standards which
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2014 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

Effective

for annual
periods
beginning on
or after

Amendment to Sale or contribution of assets 1 January 2016
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and
HKAS 28 its associate or joint venture

Amendment to Investment entities: Applying 1 January 2016
HKFRS 10, the consolidation exception
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to Accounting for acquisitions of 1 January 2016

HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations

Amendment to Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
HKAS 1

Amendment to Clarification of acceptable 1 January 2016
HKAS 16 and methods of depreciation
HKAS 38 and amortisation

Amendment to Agriculture: Bearer plants 1 January 2016
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendment to Equity method in separate 1 January 2016
HKAS 27 financial statements

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards
and amendments to existing standards and does not
anticipate that the adoption will result in any material impact
on the Group’s results of operation and financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above new standards and
amendments to existing standards when they become
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key areas of judgement that may have a significant impact in
determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
market conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Fair value of leasehold land and building

Leasehold land and building is stated at fair value in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. The fair value of leasehold
land and building is determined by independent professional
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, and the fair value of
leasehold land and building is set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements in the annual report. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions in the market for
similar type of properties in nearby locations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers and prevailing market
conditions. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of each reporting date to ensure inventories
are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in humerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowing (note
24), cash and cash equivalents (note 22) and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and
may adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down
of bank borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowing or the
adjustment of dividend to shareholders.

The Group does not have a target gearing ratio, but has a policy of
maintaining a flexible financing structure so as to be able to take
advantage of new investment opportunities that may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments, include market risk (foreign exchange risk
and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors (the “Board”) meets
periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the
Group's exposure to different risks arising from the use of financial
instruments. Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies
regarding its risk management. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB") and United States dollar ("US$").
These currencies are not the functional currencies
of the Group entities to which these balances relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the movements in the exchange rates of these
different currencies against the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates. Most of the Group'’s
business transactions are denominated in HKS, US$
and RVB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations as long as the Hong
Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2015, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by 3% against RMB with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$272,000 (2014: HK$464,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB-denominated
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and payables.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets. The Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates on cash held at
banks had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$179,000 (2014:
HK$403,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at banks.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowing of HK$45,200,000
(2014: HK$47,600,000). Borrowing at variable rates
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by cash deposit held at variable
rates. It is the Group's policy to keep the majority of
borrowings at floating interest rate so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group's interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rates
arising from the Group's deposits and borrowings.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, interest payment on floating rate borrowing
would have been approximately HK$113,000 (2014
HK$114,000) higher/lower.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ¢ 1o il b 4% P I % % O3 (41)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (b) 158 B

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
its cash in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the cash and cash equivalents

in the PRC were deposited in the major financial institutions

in the PRC with good credit rating. The Group categorises its

major counterparties into the following groups:

Group 1 — Top 4 banks in the PRC (China Construction
Bank, Bank of China, Agriculture Bank of China,
and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China);

Group 2 — Other major listed banks in the PRC; and

Group 3 — Regional banks in the PRC.

All cash at bank balances in the PRC as at 31 March 2015
and 2014 are placed with Group 1 institutions.

As at 31 March 2015, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 44% (2014: 69%) of the Group's trade
receivables balance.

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Before accepting any new customer, where available
at reasonable cost, the Group obtains credit report from
commercial information provider to assess the potential
customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer.
Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has established credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's trade and
other payables and bank borrowing, based on undiscounted
cash flows (include interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowing which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect.

The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as
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Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows:

MBI — KRR\ LR

31 March 2015
20153 H31H

Oon Lessthan Between1 Between 2
demand 1year and2years and 5 years Total
RER PR—F —FEEWME WMERRE mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FTET TET TET
Trade and other ERNERREM
payables FERTRIE - 28,024 - - 28,024
Bank borrowing RITEE 45,200 - - - 45,200
45,200 28,024 - - 73,224
31 March 2014
2014%F3A31H
on Less than Between 1 Between 2
demand lyear and2years  and5years Total
BEX PR—%F —FEWE MEERAF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FHAT FHT THT THAT
Trade and other EREFRREM
payables FEfTFRIE - 32,187 - - 32,187
Bank borrowing RITEE 47,600 - - - 47,600
47,600 32,187 - - 79,787
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

SV 5 o i 4 B H R B SR (48)

(c) WBHE SR (4)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowing with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in
the maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
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immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.

158 P 10 E B 7K B HA(EE -

Maturity analysis — Bank Borrowing subject to
a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
HH A2 — REHEERBHEZRE
RERBRHERZETEE

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and 2years and 5 years Total
PR—F —FEWMFE WMEERF gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FHET TAET
31 March 2015 20153 H31H 3,338 3,286 41,763 48,387
31 March 2014 20143 A318 3,377 3,326 45,023 51,726

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s assets carried at fair
value as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 by level of the inputs to
valuation technigues used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy
as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

Leasehold land and building are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at their revalued amount, which are classified
as level 2 for the purpose of measuring fair value. See note
17 for disclosure of the leasehold land and building that are
measured at fair value.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E E3E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2015 ®2015%€3H31H
Leasehold land and building & +ih KiEF - 95,000 - 95,000
As at 31 March 2014 ®2014%€3H31H
Leasehold land and building &L RiEF - 91,000 - 91,000

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances.

The Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

B 5 Y5 A B ik
BA
WA BRI EERBRRERES 2K
ARRERS .

FRADHERAREERALT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Sales of pearls and jewellery PU%RMIAEHE 270,709 268,473

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s management reviews the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. They have
determined the operating segments based on these reports. The
Group is principally engaged in purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products. Information reported to the Group’s management for
the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group's resources are integrated. Accordingly, the Group has
identified one operating segment — pearls and jewellery operating
segment, and segment disclosures are not presented.

The Group operates its business in Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue by geographical locations
(as determined by the area or country in which the customer is
located) is analysed as follows:

2 W EER

AEEEEEEMAEE 2 AR & AR
HRARDEER - RERBZEREE
%*é;_ﬁa‘li $¢II%1¢€$L%&H€?
EmZBRE I Rt £ERMES
He ANAEEZERE TUES  #®D
REREFERAMANEEEEE 2R
Zﬁﬂbﬂiﬁ%ﬁi‘f?&?gﬁfﬁiﬁ =
CAREECHEE —ASENE — BIRKk
f%fé?fg* ENEL - BAEZ 5D BIRFEER -

REBREBREBAINE T REER -
BIRE (R PAENEXEREE)
B D2 ARBBEATT
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2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Europe BOM 74,841 91,304
North America JEZEM 75,218 79,801
Asian countries (excluding Hong Kong) DMNER(PBEIEES) 76,952 81,776
Hong Kong B 36,264 9,742
Others Eh 7,434 5,850
270,709 268,473
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554 W BOR M
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 NEE Rl (4)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's AN AR EEEM 2 IR B st AL E
segment assets analysed by geographical location in which the SDEEEREEY O
assets are located:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong BB 317,582 419,911
PRC =8 40,912 72,209
358,494 492,120
Revenue from the transactions with two individual customers HE2015F3A3NBILMBEE - BEMAE
amounted to HK$30,321,000 and HK$28,525,000 were more than BRZEZ S 2 WA 530,321,000 7T
10% of total revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31 %% 28,525,000 % 7T 39 15 A &= B 48 U A 10%
March 2015. PAE ©
Revenue from the transactions with two individual customers BE2014F383MBILMBRERE - BRE
amounted to HK$30,946,000 and HK$29,483,000 were more than ERIZE X5 2 A S5 530,946,000 7T
10% of total revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31 % 29,483,000 7 7T ¥9 (5 7K &= B 8 U A 10%
March 2014. LA E ©
OTHER GAINS — NET 9 HAbWak — B
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Exchange losses b &8 (767) (640)
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEYE  BMEREREZ
plant and equipment (BB), /W (198) 80
Reversal of other payables H At T IR R B 1,161 1,000
Others HAh 617 730

813 1,170
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10 EXPENSES BY NATURE 10 B B2 X

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Costs of inventories GFERAR 133,822 134,089
Employee benefit expenses (including BERINAX (BHEEEWE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 11) (B33E11) 61,560 64,977
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl 1,180 1,235
Listing expenses EWRAX 16,856 =
Depreciation of property, VI -~ BB MR EITE
plant and equipment 5,998 5,657
Reversal of provision for impairment of FEUR & FURB B B O] (FTaE21)
trade receivables (note 21) (81) (6,797)
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for T E (BERE) BE
inventory obsolescence (note 20) (MF3E20) (4,647) 1,357
Operating lease rental on rented premises HAY %2 KLHEHR S 10,526 8,026
Exhibition RE 5,668 6,555
Commission and customers’ designated BekEFPEEMNK
payments 2,588 6,255
Others HAith 21,520 16,680
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAE - HERITHAS 25
administrative expenses 254,990 238,034

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 11 f@ B # A B 3% (5535 3 4)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTYS)

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENMEMER 56,433 59,560
Pension costs-defined contribution plans — BEZ &R — FEEEE T2 &

and social security costs T EIRER AR 5,127 5,417

61,560 64,977
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12

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and the five highest

paid individual as are as follows:

12 EHEAHETEAHZHE

EEkhamRaFMA L ZMEFBOT

(a) Director’s emoluments (a) FHM4
2015
Performance
Salaries related  Retirement
and other incentive benefit Other
Name of director BEfZ Fees  allowances payment contributions benefits Total
ERBHN
He FeREMmEY 2Ee  BABAER HifEH @t
(note d)
(KaEd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr T TR TR THr T
Executive directors HTEE
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy AZ/E - 1,710 1,400 17 - 3,127
Mr. Chen Zhi Wei BREEEE - 937 263 18 - 1,218
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing ONELE - 1,697 - 10 889 2,59
Independent non-executive By kHTES
directors
Mr. Fung Yat Sang HRETE 110 - - - - 10
Mr. Look Andrew BERLAE 110 - - - - 110
Mr. Tsui, Francis King Chung -~ E%e 4 110 - - - - 10
330 4,344 1,663 45 889 7,271
2014
Performance
Salaries related Retirement
and other incentive henefit Other
Name of director B Fees allowances payment  contributions benefits Total
HRAHN
e FekHtzs LRe  RUBHER HiofEHl @it
(note d)
(MizEd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET THBL THL THL THET
Executive directors HTEE
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy FAZ/ME - 1,620 1,260 14 - 2,894
Mr. Chen Zhi Wei REELEE - 901 199 15 - 1,115
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing BNERS A - 600 - 3 301 944
- 3121 1,459 R 341 4,953
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12 #HH R EHHEPABZ M4 (4)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Director’s emoluments (Continued) (a)
Notes:

(@  Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing were
appointed as directors on 13 May 2014.

(b)  Mr. Chen zZhi Wei was appointed as director on 17 June 2014.

()  Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui, Francis
King Chung were appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 26 September 2014. For the year ended 31 March
2014, the independent non-executive directors have not yet
been appointed and did not receive any remuneration.

(d)  Other benefits consist of approximate ratable value and
rent of the properties for accommodation and other related
EXPENSES.

()  No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss of
office was paid or payable to any directors during the year
(2014 Nil).

Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the

Group for the year include 3 (2014: 3) directors of the

Company whose emoluments are set out in note 12(a) above.

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2014: 2) individual are

as follows:

P 4 ()
BifsE -

() EFZF/NE KB E ST AR 2014
FSABEEZAARES -

b FREELEER2014F6 817 BEZ
ThES-

€ IBRA%AE BERELAREYTE
HR2014F9 A 26 BEZR T AL
FHITES - BBV IERITES
REZE2014F3 A3 BILFE K
EZRT - B EREE RS -

d EiEMemREEDEZMOER
ZMEERESAREMARER -

() HEZE2015%3A318ILEE - %
BEENESIRERETAINE
(2014 4F : &) - RAFE - BEE
- 8 B (E R & B RRIBIE A IIAZ
5B 2 S2E) [ SR ok B B 4 B (2014
FE) o

T4 H AL

FN - AEBRETZRFMALERE
ZH(Q2014F : ZF) KRR ESE -
WE 2L E R EXXHE120) - H
WML (2014F : MBH) AT 2B &
LN

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 TEMEAMET] 1,424 1,207
Pension costs-defined contribution BESKRA — EREENRTEI R

plans and social security costs HERER A 30 30

1,454 11237
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12 HPFEHHEABRZ M4 (4)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AT FHWMAL (5)
The number of the remaining individuals whose BT 5 RS 2 B 68 A+ A BN
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T :

Number of employees

EEAH
2015 2014
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 500,0007% 7T 2 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 2
During the year ended 31 March 2015, no emoluments HE015F3ANBIUEFE A&
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, B ERAERmT WA T (BEE
including directors, as inducement to join or upon joining the B)XAEAME - EARSIE A
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). ARG B 7 SEE) S BB i 18
(20144 : &) »
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 PifdBibI X
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Current income tax: BNERFT1S AL -
Hong Kong profits tax EEMER 3,274 3,178
PRC corporate income tax R ZEFTIS 754 802
4,028 3,980
Under/(Over)-provision in prior year: BEFERETR(GRERE)
Hong Kong profits tax EBMER 15 600
PRC corporate income tax A R 1 2 PTG R - (490)
15 110
Deferred income tax: RIEFTISH -
Net charge/(credit) for current year AFEERY () FE
(note 19) (Fft5E19) 1,950 (1,662)

5,993 2,428
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in the
PRC are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at 25% (2014
25%).

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings
generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax as follows:

B 5 Y5 A B ik

13 PifsBeb 3¢ (41)

s P13 BL
BRFEBIREAFR 2 G5t ERB S
FIRT 2 16.5% (2014 5F = 16.5%) 515 o

o 1 40 3 B 15 Bt
RERBETECEMEIER  RHIKE
FE¥E S| - R ERTE  m AR B K 25% (2014
G 25%) BT B RIS o

Bk, A IR G A 2 B

B 20084F 1 A1 BFAM @ BRIEBRIBEFHISIEL
TR - AEFEREREKERQRR
EXBFmRERBEENEEERAT D
RS BB B4R 10% TEF0ES -

HRAR FHEHILF B A B ISR -
BN =PGRS R Y S
BF - HABRERE THEMBRRZ
RABERE BN 2 BRI HERIEEPT
BHafE -

AN [ B IE B S B P 1S B AT 2 9B
mF :

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Profit before income tax R PS5 A& £ 16,049 32,024
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate 327N BT 15 55 7 28 16.5%
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (20144 : 16.5%) st B 2 Fi1B 2,648 5,284
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R Eth AR L E 2 B A 7
operating in other jurisdictions TRMEZ & (279) (312)
Tax effect of: B E
Expenses that are not deductible for A2 A
tax purpose 4,966 il,238
Income not subject to tax BAERZ WA (2,059) (4,677)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 15 110
Others HAmh 702 790
Income tax expense for the year NEEZEHREAS 5,993 2,428
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14 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 14
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company are dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$17,919,000 (2014: Nil).

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used for such
purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the
issue of shares in connection with the Reorganisation and the
Capitalisation Issue.

72 w) JBe SRR A ik R

KR B) % B FE 4G E5 18 17,919,000 78 T A A
NEBTEHEKR T ERIE (20144 : ) o

(3 2R

BRERBN TR R B IR AN R
FRAEBRTEBRZMETFHEEE - 5
B HERZ ERRINEF OB CMEE
ARBERMCBITRRZIBN BT IR ER
HEWFE -

2015 2014

Profit attributable to equity holders of AARERESREF (FHT)

the Company (HK$'000) 10,056 29,596
Weighted average number of ordinary METESREARER Az EBR

shares for the purpose of calculating I8 (FRR)

basic earnings per share (thousands) 266,321 266,321
Basic earnings per share ERREARZF (BB

(HK cents per share) 3.78 11.11

There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).
16 DIVIDEND 16

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).

HE2015F3A831BILFE @ HEEEHR
SEL AL (2014 4F « £) o
JBt B,

EESTEZEMEE2015FE3A31HILE
SR REBAR B (20144  £&) o
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y3 ~ B Bt s

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor
building - improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
RELH HE B
RET BTEE HERHEE EERRME "E &5t
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TAL TATL TAL TATL
The Group b3
At 1 April 2013 R2013%4 818
Cost A = 7,81 26,108 5858 4214 43,961
Valuation fhE 87,600 - - - - 87,600
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (7,760) (21,897) (5,284) (2,782) (37729
87,600 21 421 574 1432 93,838
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014%3831A
LEE
Opening net book amount ENEETE 87,600 2 421 574 1432 93,838
Additions NE = 658 1311 564 488 3,021
Disposals e - - (148) (124) - (272)
Depreciation E 2,643 (144) (1.877) (317) (676) (5,657)
Increase in fair value DREEN 3400 - - - - 3400
Eliminated on revaluation BiERHE 2643 - - - - 2643
Exchange differences EREE = = 16 5 10 31
Closing net book amount EXREEFE 91,000 535 3513 102 1,254 97,004
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A318
Cost KA = 8,439 24,599 5936 4527 43,501
Vialuation fhiE 91,000 - - - - 91,000
Accumulated depreciation BithE = (7904) (21,086) (5,234) (3273) (37.497)
91,000 535 3513 702 1,254 97,004
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE01583A31R
LEE
Opening net book amount ENRETR 91,000 535 3513 702 1,254 97,004
Additions AE - 1,457 3,204 224 118 5,003
Disposals e - (7) - (229) (569) (804)
Depreciation e (2,676) (469) (2,059) (363) (431) (5.998)
Increase in fair value AR B 4,000 - - - - 4,000
Eliminated on revaluation BiEEYE 2,676 - - - - 2,676
Closing net book amount EXREFE 95,000 1,516 4,658 335 n 101,881
At 31 March 2015 ®2015£3A318
Cost S - 3,007 26,974 1,295 487 31,763
Valuation @ 95,000 - - - - 95,000
Accumulated depreciation 2:E - (1,491) (22,316) (960) (115) (24,882)
95,000 1,516 4,658 335 372 101,881
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The net book value of leasehold land and building shown above

17 P93E ~ Wl B st (48)

FHE MR TFREFERR

comprises:
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land and building situated in the L RAE B AR 102 50 F
Hong Kong and held under leases of ZBRRAE 2 L R T
between 10 and 50 years 95,000 91,000

As at 31 March 2015, a leasehold building amounting to
HK$95,000,000 (2014: HK$91,000,000) was pledged as security for
bank loan facilities granted to the Group.

The Group's leasehold land and building were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited at 31 March 2015, an independent
professional property valuer, on a market value basis. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions. The increase in value arising from revaluation of
the land and building of HK$6,676,000 (2014: increase in value
HK$6,043,000) has been credited to the property revaluation
reserve.

If the leasehold land and building had not revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 10ss
of HK$27,086,000 (2014: HK$27,931,000).

R2015F3 A31H + {& {&95,000,0007% JT
(20144 : 91,000,000/8 T) ZHEEZFD
MASEEERBITERRE (EAERGS -

AEFEHE T RIEFN2015F3A31H
ZEBET BB EEYE G ERMEERT
BRARRMERERLESH  WEHEDZ
BAIELHBRMBRHETE - EfF L RE
FELEZ AR EREG,676,0007% T (2014
& #1E6,043,0008 ) Bt A EEH
A -

WHAEL REFWELETERS - ASE
JFE SE R AR 2 51T 8 K LB 518 27,086,000
7 7T (2014 4F © 27,931,000 7T ) 5t A% 5
RAFERERNA -
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18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 18 KB A v 2 B B REU
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES A5F B B 2 vl 3k
The Company
¥ NN |
2015
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets: SEMEBEE ¢
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - LKA 11,210
Current assets: MENEE -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A T 208 274,429
Current liabilities: mENAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE ST B 2 B RRE 18,212

19

FEU eI AR RIEEER 28
MEBEEESRY - REEREAERE
WIAETTIIE e

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amounts
approximate to their fair values and are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

RATIMBRRR2015F3 31 B 2 #15
BN ANF RIS IS RARMES4 -

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual
report.

HE E i 13 B

AEBREE2015F3A3MBILFEER
ZEBREMBHRAE(EE)RHEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19

The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year

ended 31 March 2015. U
Accelerated  Unrealised
Revaluation tax profit in
of properties depreciation inventories Others Total
REH
EfiNE MERERE FERA Hith @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL THL THT THL
The Group KERE
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 /18 10,665 165 (2,541) - 8,289
Net charge/(credit) to ne/GtA)Es
consolidated income statement Uiz R %5 (409) 65 (742) (576) (1,662)
Net charge to equity ME#ZFR 1,174 - - - 1,174
Reallocated to related companies B A ZEHEA A = 124 - 576 700
At 31 March 2014 R2014%63 A 318 11,430 354 (3,283) - 8,501
Net charge/(credit) to ne/GtA)Es
consolidated income statement Uiz R %5 (237) (161) 2,348 - 1,950
Net charge to equity ME#ZFE 1,102 - - - 1,102
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3 A 318 12,295 193 (935) - 11,553
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 19 YEHEP 5B (47)
For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred HENNEEAGBRME BT EEMRESR
income tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance BERAECIRERSSIEIE 129
with conditions set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of S EEY c MBI ISERRm s ZIEEFE
the deferred income taxation for financial reporting purposes: AT :
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAE 12,295 11,430
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTSHEE (742) (2,929)
At end of the year REXR 11,553 8,501
At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of $K2015F 38318 © 7 & B & 2,033,000
HK$2,033,000 (2014: HK$28,000) available for offsetting against 77T (2014 4F = 28,0007 7T.) Al A VB4 85 &
future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised HomAlz RBATIEERE - AR EERR
with respect to the total of HK$2,033,000 (2014: HK$28,000) IR B A ORI B A $£2,033,00008
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses of 7L (2014 48 = 28,000 7% 7T ) FEFRIE RE FT 15 1
HK$2,033,000 (2014: HK$28,000) have no expiry. & o B A B 182,033,000 T (2014 4F ¢
28,0007 7T) I #% & i B B8R -
Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for FRRN AR B2 A B B B 8 B 2 AR B ERER -
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained BB E AR KA RER Al B & 2K 5k
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the BN O SR T A R 2 RAAER
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that BEAF 2 EABEMRERELEFSHAE -
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future.
20 INVENTORIES 20 H1E
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials ERT 16,309 23,327
Work in progress EEG 7,752 7,509
Finished goods DT 75,776 47,446
At end of the year RER 99,837 78,282

During the year, the Group had a reversal of provision for inventory
obsolescence of HK$4,647,000 (2014 provision for inventory
obsolescence of HK$1,357,000). Such reversal of provision/
provision has been included in cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement.

RAFE AEBERLBSHEHFERB
4,647,000 70 (2014 4F : FHIR 817 & &
%1,357,000/570) - HREER A E B E
BEEFALGZERER ZHERAF o
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21 W £% 25k K 20 WE BOIR 2% ~ 3%

AND PREPAYMENTS 4 BT A 3K
The Group
KEHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEWE K 70,168 74,309
Less: provision for impairment of B B E SR ERE
trade receivables (8,733) (13,765)
Trade receivables — net R E R — B8 61,435 60,544
Other receivables, deposits EmEWERR - e
and prepayments R IBN A 18,113 13,925
Trade and other receivables, deposits U S T N H A pEUR BRFX -
and prepayments B& RIEMNRIE 79,548 74,469
Less: Non-current portion B IERBNER D (6,810) -
Current portion mENER D 72,738 74,469

The Group grants a credit period of 30 days to 120 days to
its customers. The carrying amounts of the trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values as these financial assets,
which are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be
received within a short period of time, such that the impact of the
time value of money impact is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based
on the credit history of its customers, their financial conditions
and current market conditions. Conseqguently, specific impairment

provision is recognised.

AEEREZEFKEEI0BE120A 2 F1
EEH - BB ERRE MRS RE
BEERAAERE  RERZFREHK
A EZHBEERRHN —RERKHRA
Wiz MR HRBEIYELTEK -

REFLER  AREREKERZEF ZEK
EFXAWEENREEE ZEERE - /M
BN & BRI mRRE - HIRHER B
BRI o
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21 TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

R o A5k B i BBk ~
A& B AT KO (48)

ARER B 2 FE WS R R H A MK R R 2 BR T
BT ERHE

The Group
REH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Renminbi AR 3,809 4,512
United States dollar ETT 58,273 53,560
Hong Kong dollar BT 17,466 15,974
Others =) - 423
79,548 74,469

The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery
of the amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined
that such balances are not recoverable, in which case the
impairment loss is directly written off against the corresponding
trade receivables. Based on past experience and the Group’s
assessment, management believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality of such receivables and
the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

R ER B /5 T R 100 AR 9 2 P R MR AR
2HER BRIFAEERBLEEHRTA
Ym - U ER T RERBE B EREE
FEFEWE M - RIBBELRIAEHE
ZEHE - EEEREHARREERIED
BERE RERZEFRUEREEEER
WEEBREES)  MRFEHRBER/TEH
Yem e

EREFREREZENT

The Group
rEH

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year REH 13,765 20,562
Reversal of provision for impairment losses i {& &5 18 1 & # 5l (81) 6,797)
Amounts written off as uncollectible AR o M S5 (4,951) -
At end of the year NER 8,733 13,765

The reversals of impairment losses on trade receivables have
been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement (note 10). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

FEM B BB IR R E 5t AR A e R
2 [17BFsz ] (f15E10) - IAFEE T & U
BINRE - FEAEBRZ S RS
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$70,168,000 (2014: HK$74,309,000) and their
ageing analysis based on due date is as follows:

21

B 5 Y5 A B ik

R £k B b BBk K ~
4 Be AT K (4)

T AR SR B R M E 5K I H h FE U AR B AR
Z FE W & 3K 470,168,000/ 7T (2014 4
74,309,00058 7T)  WERFRIEF B 2
BRERDATUOT

The Group
REH

2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Not past due me 18,659 17,344
1to 60 days past due BHEI1ZE 60 H 18,387 31,144
61 to 120 days past due BHEI61E 120 B 8,546 8,463
More than 120 days past due BHIABE 120 A 24,576 17,358
70,168 74,309

87

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$42,776,000 (2014:
HK$43,200,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality of these receivables and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is
as follows:

R TR E < R S0P & % % 3
HRERCEEZ TREP °

7201593 4318 » fE U E 5142,776,000
¥ 7T (2014 4F : 43,200,0005% 7T ) & C 78 &
BRRBE  HWERKERBZEZB IR
B S BN A HE R GE BGRER o AR
BRECR SREEBRAEHARNKELEH
ELRERE REAZERKEREE
BRWEEANEE  WHSERTNEERA
A 2 ERURE] o b S UK E B2 BR e D AT 4R
T

The Group
rEH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
1t0 60 days past due BE1ZE60R 18,387 31,144
61 to 120 days past due BEI61E 120 B 8,107 7,767
More than 120 days past due B AR B 120 H 16,282 4,289
42,776 43,200
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21

22

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$8,733,000 (2014:
HK$13,765,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

21

R o A5k B i BBk ~
A& B AT KO (48)

201563 4318 » fEUKE 5X8,733,0007%
JC (2014 4F : 13,765,000 7T ) A B W E &
Bt - ERREZ BMEREZ S
BEREHZIMEEREZREAM - IS
FEURBR R Z BRI DATZAT -

The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT
61 to 120 days past due BEA61 =120 B 439 696
More than 120 days past due BIERFRB 120 B 8,294 13,069
8,733 13,765
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 BE&ERFHB4E
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$‘000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 70,186 115,411
Time deposits TEBRTER 6,300 53,184
76,486 168,595

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

RekFRREZREEEE A EIRE
ReRERREIATIEEE

The Group
AEH

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT F&TT
Renminbi AR 15,251 22,714
United States dollar E7T 49,612 96,466
Hong Kong dollar BT 8,236 46,680
Others H 3,387 2,735
76,486 168,595

The periods of time deposits approximately range from 1 month
to 2 months and they carry interest at short-term deposit rates of
below 1% (2014: below 1%).

EHEFHEEBNTH—EAZEREAR @ I
IR 1E (2014 F - B B) 2 B HEITER
FIZEEE -
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B3 W 5 R e
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 BAeRZNRB4(8)
(CONTINUED)
The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign 15 IAA REESHE Z #8845 40 R SN 30 15 1t
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies EPINETHEZ RITERRIRSEL PR -
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject 78 8 <F R B BT 9B T I AR 4D 2 AR A AR
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control Bl K #7151 <
promulgated by the PRC government.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 MEA Bk B Al HE A MRk
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade payables ERER 4,216 6,028
Accrued payroll and employee benefits FEst & REE R T 12,688 13,504
Other accruals and other payables HAbERTE R R EAETERR 12,482 13,321
29,386 32,853

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as
follows:

FENERRIEBR A RN

The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 4,216 5,669
61 to 120 days 61£2120H - 50
More than 120 days HBiE120H - 309
4,216 6,028
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to ENERREMEMNERZRAEEAEA
their fair values, and are denominated in the following currencies: AMEMRE - WA T EBE :
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Renminbi AR 8,196 8,291
United States dollar S 6,376 9,533
Hong Kong dollar BIT 14,789 15,029
Others Hith 25 -
29,386 32,853
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24 BANK BORROWING 24 BT R
The Group
AEH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BN EA
Bank borrowing HRITEE 45,200 47,600

The maturity of the bank borrowing with reference to the schedule
of repayment set out in the loan agreement regardless of
repayment on demand clause is as follows:

AR B SR 09 o P & SRR ] 1 P e iR 2 3Rk
BRGEH |RITEEZFHMBANT

The Group
rEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Within 1 year —FR 2,400 2,400
Between 1 and 2 years —FERFN 2,400 2,400
Between 2 and 5 years MEERFN 40,400 42,800
45,200 47,600

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's bank borrowing of
HK$45,200,000 (2014: HK$47,600,000) was secured by the
Group's leasehold land and building located in Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$95,000,000 (2014: HK$91,000,000), and the
Company's corporate guarantee.

As at 31 March 2015, the bank borrowing is classified as
current liabilities because the related loan agreement contains
a repayment on demand clause which gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time. This bank borrowing
will mature in December 2018 (2014: December 2018).

The carrying amount of bank borrowing approximates to its
fair value. The bank borrowing is carried at HIBOR+1.9% (2014
HIBOR+1.9%) per annum.

R20159F3 4318 A& &£45,200,000
7 7T (2014 4F © 47,600,000 7T ) Z SR 171
B AR & B8R E & A 95,000,000 % 7T (2014
£ : 91,000,000 7) 2 BEHE L i R 1E
FRARNEZEEERERE -

M2015F3A318 @ RITEESEARE
BfE REAAMEHERBRESKRERE
RGBT ERAEGGENATRERNE
REEER o LIBRITEE KR 2018F 12
A (20144 : 2018412 B ) BIHA »

RITEEZEAEREQARERE - R1T
EEREBIRITRZENRSI1.9/E (20145 :
EBBITREREMIOE)AEES o
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25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 JBAR
Number of Share
shares capital
BHEE i€
2015 2015
HK$
BT
Authorised: JERE ¢
At 13 May 2014 (date of incorporation) 201445 A 13 B (G B &)
(Note a) (frzxa) 380,000 380,000
Increase in authorised share capital and 1 H0EE IR R IR AR (FizEDb)
subdivision of shares (Note b) 999,620,000 9,620,000

At 31 March 2015 R2015F3 A31H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 13 May 2014 (date of incorporation) 2014495 A 13 B (GEfAZ B ER)

(Note a) (Mizxa) 1 1
Subdivision of shares (Note b) AR (FsED) 99 -
Capitalisation issue (Note c) BRI ET (MiEc) 266,321,063 2,663,211
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3 A31H 266,321,163 2,663,212

As at 31 March 2015, the authorised ordinary shares of the

com

Note:

(@)

pany have par value of HK$0.01 each.

The Company was incorporated on 13 May 2014. As at the date
of incorporation, the Company had an authorised share capital
of HK$380,000, divided into 380,000 shares of HK$1.00 each. On
the same date, one share was issued for cash at par to the initial
subscriber.

On 26 September 2014, pursuant to the written resolutions of the
sole shareholder of the Company, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000
and each issued and unissued shares of HK$1.00 each was sub-
divided into 100 shares of HK$0.01 each. Immediately thereafter, the
authorised share capital of the Company comprised 1,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 100 shares were in issue.

On 10 October 2014, an amount of approximately HK$283.1
million was capitalised into 266,321,063 shares of HK$0.01 each
pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue resulting in a share premium of
approximately HK$280.5 million (note 26).

R2015F 38318 ARAEELREBKZ
SFEREEA0.01EIT °

GEX

(@  ARFR201445 B 13 BREMAKIL ° R
Sz B+ RRQ 2% E R & 380,000
7T+ 9 £ 380,000 A% 5 A% I {E 1.00 7% 7T
2B - AA - —BRBRHEZREERTT
IIERE ABREURE -

(b) HR2014F9H26H @ B IE X A 7 ¥ —
BREME@MARER  NAFLAERAAR
380,000 7T 1 Hn = 10,000,000 7T © M
HEREE1008THNEREBITRA
ZATRRD P48 5 100 i & AR EE.0.01 78 7T
2B o BREEE - AQRKSEERAE
$% 1,000,000,000 % &A% I B 0.01 7 7T 2 %
15+ E A 100 AR 1D B 81T °

(€ 2014410 A 108 - #9283,100,000% 7T
BIBE RN E1T 2 BT E AN A 266,321,063
REREME0.0 B T2k - EERD R
{8 #9280,500,00058 7t (P35 26) °
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26 RESERVES —THE COMPANY

26 filifli — A2 W]

Share Accumulated

The Company AT premium losses Total
B 10 = E e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T T
At 13 May 2014 (date of "2014%5H13H
incorporation) (FFEM RS B HY) = - -
Capitalisation issue (note 25) BA(3AT (3 25) 280,483 - 280,483
Loss for the year REEERE = (17,919) (17,919)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3H31H 280,483 (17,919) 262,564
27 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 27 B AR A AR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Bx FHIT
Finance income B s as
Interest income on short-term RHERIT R F B HA
bank deposits 517 584
Finance cost ZURID TN
Interest expenses on borrowing BEZF B (1,000) (169)
28 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 28 HEARRE
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but BRIAERNERE ISR
not provided for in the consolidated ZEARAX :
financial statements:
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BEL&E
equipment 1,423 770
1,423 770




R — AR AT A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

554 W R B
29 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29 HEBMEZH
The Group as lessee AR A By R ALA
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments R2015F3 318 » REBEIZEN T 5IHME
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EmZ T B EHER AR KIS
operating leases which fall due as follows: A EENT
The Group
rER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Operating leases which expire: T ETE DA E W
Within one year —F R 10,991 10,991
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLFT (BEEREMT) 10,798 21,758
From fifth years onwards FRF% - 20
21,789 32,769

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to five years and
rentals are fixed during the relevant lease period.

30 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Company issued corporate guarantees to a bank in respect of
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. To the extent
of such banking facilities, the borrowing of HK$45,200,000 (2014:
HK$47,600,000) was drawn by one of its subsidiaries, as detailed in
note 24 of these financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has maximum exposure on the
guarantee of HK$45,200,000 (2014: HK$47,600,000). The Directors
are of the view that the fair value of such guarantee is not
significant.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had no
other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015 (2014
Nil).

31 NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

()  During the year, the Group sold property, plant and
equipment at a consideration of HK$585,000 (2014 Nil) to a
related party which was settled by offsetting an equivalent
amount due by the Group to the related party.

(i) On 10 October 2014, the Company allotted and issued
266,321,063 shares to MSIL by way of capitalising the amount
due from the Group to MSIL of approximately HK$283.1
million.

30

31

BOBTIHUERA—SHE  HHEER
EERMANETTE -

B ER

ARBIBEWNBRARER Y —RIBTEHE
M —RBITED B EWER - ERARARTT
BMEMES  EP A BAREREMEE
45,200,000/ 7T (20144F : 47,600,000/ 7T)
FEEN ST RN E24

R2015F 38318 » A& & gt & (R A &
2 & = B B & 45,200,000% T (2014 4F :
47,600,000870) - EER A BHEERZ
NRELTFEK -

BREXFTEEEN ZEBRAQER
2015F3A3NBUEEMERNNAEE
(20145 : 4®) -

FHB &R

() RAFE AEBEW—Z@EA
THEME BELRE REA
585,000/ 7T (2014 £F = 48%) » JH AHK
HAEEENZBAEATZSERA
FRELS

@iy M2014F10H108 © KR A& @
BAEEEMNREBERERZ AL
283,100,000 8 THFTEER - AR E
I [ B 2 I % 17266,321,063 8% % (7 °
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEANLRY
(a) Key management compensation (a) FBEFIA B 2ZH M
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 6,986 4,997
Pension costs — defined contribution  BE &R — FEREMFEEI R
plans and social security costs HERER A 57 35
7,043 5,032
(b) The Group entered into the following material related party (b) AEER—REBBRFETUATE
transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary course RKBEALRS - WERHTIRES
of the Group’s business. These transactions are made of HRAE AT HEEHE ZIGRETAL ©
terms mutually agreed by the related parties.
2015 2014
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$'000
BREALRE REME FET T
Entities which is significantly Reimbursement of rental charges paid
influenced by a key management  on behalf
personnel of the Company WERZNzEE 2,847 1,749
KRl —RZEBEBRAEBHES
BEAFENCERE Rental expenses 2,111 2,276
ikl
Recharge of administrative expenses
Welsl 2 1T B R 32 4,477 5,719
Amounts due from/(to) related parties are unsecured, FEdR,(FELT) BRE A T 38 A &K
interest-free and repayable on demand. - B BEREREE -
Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, BréRE TSR PTIREREIN - WAHE
there were no other significant related party transactions. mikﬁa BALRE -
33 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33 WBAREA
The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of B4R 6 W R bR 2 85K 745,127,000 % 7T
HK$5,127,000 (2014: HK$5,417,000), representing contributions (2014 4F : 5,417,000 7T ) 5 75 55 [ fE () iR

payable to the retirement benefits schemes by the Group. REFIET B2 R o



R — AR AT A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

B 5 Y5 A B ik

34 BB L v EORE

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
establishment/  of issued share equity attributable
principal place  capital/registered to the Group
Name of subsidiary of operation capital FEBELERT L Principal activities
vkt ERITRAE/ Directly  Indirectly
KB AR &R FTERE Y AMEREE B Mg FEER
Arcadia Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 100%  Trading and manufacturing of
EERMBRAA Bk 3% 500,00078 7T jewellery products
BERMEREER
Man Sang Innovations Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 100%  Trademark holding
RERIRARAT BB AR 5,000/8 T RHEER
Man Sang Jewellery (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100%  Trading of pearl products
Limited Eh LBR1BT EEYHEm
REKE (BB)ERDA
Hui Bao Feng Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC Registered capital 100%  Purchasing and processing of
Limited H US$2,000,000 pearls and assembling of
EELHE (FIDBERATF &7 2,000,000% 7T pearl jewellery
FERNIZHRRERY K
HE
Hong Kong Man Sang Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 100%  Property holding and
Limited 5 @AY 5,000 T management
BRRERBERAR HEREENE
Arcadia Investment Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited 0 LER1ET HERE
EEEREERBRAA
Kasiao (Shenzhen) Jewellery PRC Registered capital 100%  Jewellery and pearl business
Company Limited H RMB$2,000,000 RERYIKEHR
AR ERE BB AR ZMERARE
2,000,0007T
Man Sang International Holdings  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary USD$1,500 100% Investment holding
Limited ("BVI") LM 15005 7T HERE
REERZRER AR ERERRHE
(EEERR
#sl)
Arcadia Gobal Holdings Limited BV Ordinary USD$1,000 100% Investment holding
EEERFIERBRAA REEARES  TRER1000ET HERE

95

ETHEBARYEE TREXEAM  HRX
ERWDARAEREBERAB IHEES X
HEBERTS -

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort
by the management of the Company in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have official English names.
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Y 45 S 5 43 2

RESULTS
E 3
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3AMBLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT FAT FHET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(MysEa) (Mt3ED) (MtEED) (MtEED)
Revenue ON 270,709 268,473 261,411 300,024
Profit before income tax K BT 18 %54 Al s Al 16,049 32,024 16,398 47,902
Income tax expense FrE RS (5,993) (2,428) (2,121) (4,966)
Profit attributable to equity holders of  ZXA B AR B fE(L
the Company for the year FERA 10,056 29,596 14,277 42,936
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
& nE K R
At 31 March
MW3H31H
2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FAT FET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(MtzEa) (FF5ED) (FF5ED) (FF5ED)
Total assets REE 358,494 492,120 747,647 638,836
Total liabilities wafmE 90,896 93,259 383,081 195,067
Equity attributable to equity holders of A2 R R FE(L
the Company Eam 267,598 398,861 364,566 443,769
Notes e

(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial  (a)  BI#&EF oA RERGE S B ERE -
statements in the annual report.

(b)  The financial figures were extracted from the Listing Document dated 30 (b)) EBFEF /45 E 201449 A0 A H &M £
September 2014. X4 o

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2011 was not HRASEE T EREZ201MFI3ANBLEFE
disclosed as consolidated financial statements for the Group have not fREUREFHBRE W EWRBEZFENTHE
been prepared for that year. The summary above does not form part of ﬂ bt wglﬂﬁﬁkﬁix&m%*Z,i?éﬁﬁ%#&
the audited consolidated financial statements in the annual report. EGoki3)
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